
 

 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, February 6, 2018 
Northcentral Technical College 

1000 W. Campus Drive 
Wausau, WI  54401 

Timberwolf Conference Center 
1:00 p.m. 

 
12:15 p.m. Lunch 
 
1:00 p.m. Call to order, compliance with Open Meetings Law (Wis. Stat. 19.81-19.88) 
   

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
 

II. PUBLIC INPUT 
A. Public Comments 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Approval of minutes from January 9, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board Approve the meeting minutes from the January 
9, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting.   
 
Voice vote required to approve. 

 

IV. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Approval of 2018 – 2019 Tentative Capital Budget  – Lori Weyers/Roxanne Lutgen 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College District Board approve the 2018 – 2019 Tentative 
Capital Budget not to exceed the $11,800,000 capital expenditures budget, funded through capital 
borrowings of $11,500,000, fund balance of $200,000, and donations of $100,000, including identified 
items exceeding $50,000. 
 

Voice vote required to approve.  

 

V. CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. Approval of consent Voting Agenda 

1. New Garden to Market Technical Diploma Program 

2. Receipts & Expenditures 

3. Personnel Changes 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College District Board approves the Consent Voting Agenda 
including: 
               1.  New Garden to Market Technical Diploma 
               2.  Receipts & Expenditures 
               3.  Personnel Changes 
Roll call vote required to approve.  

 1/54



 

 
VI. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

A. President’s Report 

1. Legislative Updates 
2. Comments from Informational Update 

 
B. Chairperson’s Report 

1. Spring 2018 Board Appointment Update 
 

C. Information 

1. Mid-Year Dashboard – Handout – Vicki Jeppesen/Angie Servi 
2. Advisory Meeting Minutes  
3. Upcoming Meetings/Events  
4. Good News 

 
VII. BOARD DEVELOPMENT 

A. ALICE Training – Dan Jacobson 
 

VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Immediately following the open session) 
A. Adjourn Board into Closed Session pursuant to Section 19.85 (1) (f) and (g) for the purpose of: 

1. Approval of the December 5, 2017 Closed Session Minutes 
2. Update the Board on possible litigation 

Motion:  To Adjourn Board into Closed Session Pursuant to Section 19.85 (1) (f) and (g) for the 
Purpose of: 

1. Approval of the December 5, 2017 Closed Session Minutes 
2. Update the Board on possible litigation 

Roll Call Vote Required 

 
IX. OPEN SESSION 
Reconvene into Open Session to take any action deemed necessary as a result of the closed session. 

 

X. MEETING ADJOURN 

Note:   Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin's "Open Meetings Law".     

 
Mission:  Northcentral Technical College provides high-quality, learner and employer focused, 
educational pathways committed to enriching lives and strengthening the economy. 

 

 

2/54



 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, January 9, 2018 
Northcentral Technical College 

1000 W. Campus Drive 
Wausau, WI  54401 

Timberwolf Conference Center D100 
 

The Northcentral Technical College District Board of Trustees met on January 9, 2018 at the Wausau 
Campus.  Chairperson Tom Felch called the meeting to order at 1:15 p.m. 
 

Roll Call: 

Douglas Faragher (Joined via video conference 1:15pm) X Ruth Risley-Gray X 
Tom Felch X Dale Smith X 
Kristine Gilmore  (Left at 2:16pm) X Maria Volpe    X 
Lee Lo                        X Paul Proulx       X 
Charlie Paulson                      X   

 

Compliance with Open Meeting Law 
PaHnia Thao reported the meeting was being held in compliance with Open Meetings Law 19.81-19.88 of 
the Wisconsin Statutes. 

 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

A. Recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

A. There were no public comments 
 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

A. It was moved by Paul Proulx and seconded by Kris Gilmore that the NTC Board of Trustees 
meeting minutes from December 5, 2017 be approved.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

IV. REGULAR VOTING AGENDAS 

A. Antigo – Merrill Center for CDL Training Addition 
It was moved by Maria Volpe and seconded by Lee Lo that the NTC District Board approves the 
Merrill Center for CDL Training Addition at a cost not to exceed $650,000, and request the WTCS 
State Board do the same. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3/54



B. Remodeling:  Wausau Continuing Education Renovation 
 

It was moved by Kris Gilmore and seconded by Ruth Risley-Gray that the NTC District Board 
approves the Wausau Continuing Education Renovation at a cost not to exceed $650,000 and 
requests the WTCS State Board to do the same. 

 

V. CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. It was moved by Maria Volpe and seconded by Kris Gilmore that the NTC District Board approves 
the consent Voting Agenda 

 Receipts & Expenditures 

 Personnel Changes 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Roll Call Vote Ayes:  Faragher, Felch, Gilmore, Lo, Paulson, Risley-Gray, Proulx, Smith, Volpe (all) 

 

VI. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

A. President’s Report 
1. Mid-Year Institutional Initiatives – Handout 

The Executive Leadership Team updated the Board on the mid-year institutional initiatives.  
The mid-year institutional initiatives handout is included in the official meeting minutes. 
 

2. Nursing Instructor Shortage – Jeannie Worden/Darren Ackley/Marlene Roberts 
Nursing shortages and nursing instructor shortages are happening across the country.  NTC 
currently has a nursing instructor shortage.  Nursing instructors are leaving to work for private 
industries.  We reviewed our employment guideline and had to make changes to nursing 
faculty contract number of weeks to ensure we can still serve our learners and produce 
nursing graduates.  The early resignation fee for instructors has been increased.  We are 
looking at what we are competing against.  We’re hoping to recruit based on the benefits such 
as “no on-call, health benefits, time off, etc.”   NTC wants to publicly thank Ruth Risley-Gray 
and Aspirus for stepping in to get clinicals for NTC students.  We have to look at what we can 
do and are work diligently to recruit. The nursing instructor shortage handouts are included 
with the official meeting minutes. 
 

3. Comments from Informational Update 
We are working aggressively at program completion and looking at best practices to increase 
completion rate. 
 
There was an elderly gentleman that wandered away from his home and was found deceased 
on NTC property.  We received a letter from Wausau Police Department specifically thanking 
Dan Jacobson, Jordan Schult, Dustin Sprague, and Rob Elliott for working closely and 
cooperating with the Wausau Police Department on their investigation.  We sent condolences 
to the family. 
 
Park Falls Paper Mill will be reducing their workforce.  NTC has a rapid response team that will 
go in and assess what we can do to help. 

4/54



 
B. Chairperson’s Report 

1. Spring 2017 Board Appointment Process 
Dale Smith will not reapply for his board term. 
 

2. Winter WTC DBA Meeting 1/25/18 – 1/27/18 – Eau Claire, WI (CVTC) 
NTC District is unable to attend this meeting. 
 

3. ACCT Legislative Conference – 2/11/18 – 2/14/18 
NTC District is unable to attend this conference. 
 

C. Information 

 Advisory Meeting Minutes 

 Upcoming Meetings/Events 

 Good News 
 
VII. BOARD DEVELOPMENT 

A. ALICE Training – Dan Jacobson 
Due to technology, the ALICE Training was postponed to be conducted at the February 6th Board meeting. 
VIII. MEETING ADJOURN 

By consensus the meeting adjourned at 2:21 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
_____________________________________________ 

 Maria Volpe, Secretary/Treasurer 
 Northcentral Technical College District Board of Trustees 
 
 Note:   Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 

Wisconsin's "Open Meetings Law". 

5/54



 

 

NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 

 

TOPIC:    2018-2019 Capital Budget Planning  

 

POLICY  1.3.1 Budgeting – may not cause or allow budgeting which contains too little 

information, as determined by the Board to enable credible projection of revenues and ex-

penses, separation of capital and operational items, cash flow, and disclosure of planning 

assumptions. 

 1.6.5 Asset Protection - may not make any purchases or commit the organiza-

tion to any expenditure of greater than $50,000. 

 

INTERPRETATION: Credible projections are based on multiyear plans supporting com-

munity benefits statements and executive limitations. Planning assumptions are based on 

multi-year capital expenditure plans and funding sources.  Expenditures greater than 

$50,000 must have board approval.  

 

DATA/RESULTS: Attached are three planning documents. 

1. 2018-2019 Capital Expenditure Funding Sources shows the funding plan for the next 

year’s capital budget. 

2. 2018-2019 Capital Expenditure Summary shows categories of capital expenditures 

for next year’s capital budget.  

3. 2018-2019 Capital Equipment Budget Requests provides additional information and 

identifies expenditures greater than $50,000 requiring board approval. 

 

Final approval of the capital expenditures budget will be sought at the March 6, 2018 board 

meeting. 

 

AGENDA CATEGORY: 

 Regular Voting Agenda 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Tentative approval not to exceed the $11,800,000 

capital expenditures budget, funded through capi-

tal borrowings of $11,500,000, fund balance of 

$200,000, and donations of $100,000, including 

identified items exceeding $50,000. 
 

CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is 

true as of this date. 

 

 

Signed____________________________________________ Dated__February 5, 2018_____ 

6/54



 

 

 

2018-2019 Capital Expenditure Funding Sources

$11,800,000 Total Capital Expenditures Budget

$11,500,000      Funded through Annual Capital Borrowings

$200,000      Funded through Fund Balance

$100,000      Funded through Donations  
 

2018-19 Capital Expenditure Summary

Fiscal Year

Description 2018-2019 Subtotal

Previously Committed Capital Expenditures  

Distance Education Leases $142,000

Other Items $929,000

$1,071,000

Capital Contingency Fund $400,000

$400,000

Technology Maintenance  

Microcomputers and Consulting $1,275,000

Network Equipment $1,240,000

Smart Classrooms $425,000

Advanced Technology Initiatives $621,000

$3,561,000

High Priority Educational Needs

Equipment and Software $1,700,000

$1,700,000

Long Range Facility Plan Recommendations

Regional Campuses $1,815,000

Central Campus $3,253,000

$5,068,000

TOTAL $11,800,000  
 

7/54



2018-2019 Capital Equipment Budget Request (Items greater than $50,000) 

Page 1 of 5  

 
Division Item Requested 

(N
) 

N
e
w

 

(R
) 

R
e
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

t 

(P
) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 

Definition Impact 
(FTE, Headcount, 
Location, Program, etc.) 

Life 
Cycle 

Strategic 
Direction 
College 
Goals 

Cost 

Information 
Technology 

Distance Education 
Leases 

P Charter Wide Area Network, 
WiscNet, and WTCN Teach 
Link all support distance 
education. 

District-wide and distance 
learner impact.  Provides 
connectivity to regional 
campuses and the Internet.  
Impacts all students, 
employees, and 
stakeholders. 

Yearly Growth and 
Innovation 

$142,000 

Information 
Technology 

Provides unrestricted 
use of most used 
Microsoft products 
and other Software 
Licenses 

P NTC student and staff access 
to Microsoft products, and 
other Software licenses 
necessary for college 
business throughout the 
District. 

Software licenses necessary 
to conduct business and 
training throughout the 
District. 

Yearly Growth and 
Innovation 

$891,000 
 

District-wide Capital Contingency 
Fund 

P Emergency Dollars Emergency capital dollars 
for equipment that breaks or 
new initiative equipment or 
facility needs during the 
year. 

Yearly Growth and 
Innovation 

$400,000 

Information 
Technology 

Computer 
workstations 

R We plan to replace approx. 
25% of all computers.  This 
year we plan to purchase 
approx. 500 items of 
computers/peripherals for 
students with all of the 
replaced items passing down 
to staff. 

Workstation replacements 
per the long-term computer 
refresh plan. 

Yearly Growth and 
Innovation 

$575,000 

Information 
Technology 

Consultant support P Consultant support of High 
Street to enhance the 
usability of PeopleSoft and to 
build complex master images 
of computer desktops utilized 
for instruction. 
 
 

District wide and distance 
learner impact. 
 

Yearly Growth and 
Innovation 

$700,000 

8/54



2018-2019 Capital Equipment Budget Request (Items greater than $50,000) 

Page 2 of 5  

Division Item Requested 

(N
) 

N
e
w

 

(R
) 

R
e
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

t 

(P
) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 

Definition Impact 
(FTE, Headcount, 
Location, Program, etc.) 

Life 
Cycle 

Strategic 
Direction 
College 
Goals 

Cost 

Information 
Technology 

Data cabling and 
telephones 

R Data cabling and telephones 
in remodeled areas. 

Renovations related to 
building remodeling. 

7 years Growth and 
Innovation 

$ 50,000 

Information 
Technology 

Capital Contingency 
for IT renovations  

R We plan IT renovations 
whenever building remodeling 
occurs. 

IT renovations related to 
building remodeling requires 
contingency as needs 
become apparent throughout 
the remodeling project. 

Yearly Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$100,000 

Information 
Technology 

Safety & Security N Additional Cameras and 
related monitoring equipment 

Increased Safety and 
Security for all students and 
staff 

5 years Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$ 75,000 

Information 
Technology 

Server and Network 
Equipment 
Replacement  
 

R Replacement and repairs of 
servers and network 
equipment.  

Servers that provide 
communications within the 
network as well as the 
network itself need regular 
maintenance and 
replacement  

Yearly Growth and 
Innovation 

$530,000 

Information 
Technology 

HD Video 
Conferencing 

P We plan to replace/upgrade 
Interactive video conferencing 
(IVC) rooms on an as needed 
basis. 

This replaces/upgrades our 
IVC system/rooms per the 
long-term IVC refresh plan. 

5 year 
plan 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$325,000 
 

Information 
Technology 

PeopleSoft Operating 
System Maintenance 

P The PeopleSoft system is the 
operating system for the 
entire college.  

Software maintenance on 
this system is required. 

Yearly Growth and 
Innovation 

$135,000 

Information 
Technology 

Smart Classrooms P Maintenance of Smart 
Classrooms equipped with 
DVD, document camera, 
computer, LCD screen, 
instructor station with control 
system, speakers and wiring.  

District-wide impact 
  

5 year 
plan 

Growth and 
Innovation 

$425,000 

Information 
Technology 

Advanced 
Technology Initiatives 

N Technology equipment and 
services installed in 
conjunction with facility 
projects. 

District-wide impact 
  

5 year 
plan 

Growth and 
Innovation 

$621,000 

9/54



2018-2019 Capital Equipment Budget Request (Items greater than $50,000) 

Page 3 of 5  

Division Item Requested 

(N
) 

N
e
w

 

(R
) 

R
e
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

t 

(P
) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 

Definition Impact 
(FTE, Headcount, 
Location, Program, etc.) 

Life 
Cycle 

Strategic 
Direction 
College 
Goals 

Cost 

Facilities Wausau Auditorium 
Remodeling 
 

R Remodeling Auditorium Provide large auditorium and 
conference center space for 
business and industry 
events and other NTC 
conferences. 

20 - 30 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improved 

$400,000 

Facilities Agricultural Center of 
Excellence 
Remodeling 
 

N Veterinary Science Lab and 
furniture 

Provide science lab for 
Veterinary Tech program. 
 

20 - 30 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improved 

$250,000 

Facilities Agricultural Center of 
Excellence Parking 
Lot Resurface 

R Agricultural Center of 
Excellence Parking Lot 
Resurface 

Resurfacing of Agricultural 
Center of Excellence parking 
lot  

10 - 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$ 60,000 

Facilities Merrill Public Safety 
Center of Excellence 
Candidate Physical 
Agility Testing 
(CPAT) Building 

N CPAT Training Center Addition to provide CPAT 
training on Merrill Campus 
($50,000 donated to the 
College) 

20 years Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$525,000 

Facilities Merrill Public Safety 
Center of Excellence 
Lineman Program 
Project  

N Lineman Program Training Project work to provide 
lineman training on Merrill 
Campus 
 

20 years Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$325,000 

Facilities Merrill Campus 
CDL Training addition 

N CDL Training addition Addition to CDL training 
building on Merrill Campus. 
 

20 years Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$400,000 

Facilities Merrill Campus 
CDL Parking Lot 
Resurface 

R CDL Parking Lot Resurface Resurfacing of CDL training 
parking lot on Merrill 
Campus 

10 - 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$320,000 

Facilities Furniture & 
Classroom upgrades 

R Replacement and Upgrades 
district-wide 

Normal life cycle 
replacement. 

8 – 12 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$525,000 

Facilities Wausau Campus 
Remodeling 

R A Building Handicapped 
Parking Lot Resurfacing 
 

Resurfacing the A Building 
Handicapped Parking on 
the Wausau Campus  

10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$175,000 

10/54



2018-2019 Capital Equipment Budget Request (Items greater than $50,000) 

Page 4 of 5  

Division Item Requested 

(N
) 

N
e
w

 

(R
) 

R
e
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

t 

(P
) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 

Definition Impact 
(FTE, Headcount, 
Location, Program, etc.) 

Life 
Cycle 

Strategic 
Direction 
College 
Goals 

Cost 

Facilities Wausau Campus 
Remodeling 

R Cafeteria Roof Replacement Cafeteria Roof 
Replacement 

10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$450,000 

Facilities Wausau Campus 
Remodeling 

N CBI Parking Lot Entrance Extend CBI Parking Lot 
entrance to Campus Drive 

10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$125,000 

Facilities Wausau Campus  N Courtyard Equipment Courtyard recreation 
equipment 

10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$300,000 

Facilities Wausau Campus 
Farm-to-Table 
Equipment  

N Farm-to-Table Equipment Equipment for Farm-to-
Table Program Needs 

10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$600,000 

Facilities Fleet Vehicles N Fleet Vehicle Replacements Regular replacement of 
College fleet vehicles 

10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$ 50,000 

Facilities Wausau Campus R Lighting Upgrades Lighting Upgrades 10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$ 50,000 

Facilities Facilities 
Maintenance 
Equipment 
 

R Facilities Maintenance 
Equipment 

Replacement Maintenance 
Equipment 

10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improved 

$100,000 

Facilities Wausau Campus  R Restroom Handicap Door 
Operators 

Upgrade Restroom 
Handicap Door Operators. 

20 – 30 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$ 60,000 

Facilities Wausau Campus  R Sidewalk Replacement Sidewalk replacement on 
Wausau Campus. 

10 – 20 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$ 50,000 

Facilities Wausau Campus 
remodeling   

R Construction contingency Renovations related to 
building remodeling requires 
contingency as needs 
become apparent during 
remodeling projects. 

20 – 30 
years 

Continuous 
Quality 
Improvement 

$100,000 

11/54



2018-2019 Capital Equipment Budget Request (Items greater than $50,000) 

Page 5 of 5  

Division Item Requested 

(N
) 

N
e
w

 

(R
) 

R
e
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

t 

(P
) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 

Definition Impact 
(FTE, Headcount, 
Location, Program, etc.) 

Life 
Cycle 

Strategic 
Direction 
College 
Goals 

Cost 

Learning Wausau Campus 
Greenhouse/ 
Restaurant 
Equipment 

N Greenhouse/ Restaurant 
Equipment 

Greenhouse/ Restaurant 
Equipment to align with 
Farm-to-Table equipment. 

5 – 10 
years 

Growth and 
Innovation 

$200,000 

Learning Wausau Campus 
Machine Tool 
Program Equipment 

R Proto Trak Mill Replacement of 40-year old 
manual CNC Control 
Machine that can no longer 
hold tolerances and 
frequently breaks down. 

5 – 10 
years 

Growth and 
Innovation 

$ 90,000 

Learning Wausau Campus 
Electromechanical  
Program Equipment 

N Fenceless LR Mate Training 
Hardware and Software 

Robotic safety system to 
prevent robot-human 
contact. 

5 – 10 
years 

Growth and 
Innovation 

$ 87,500 

Learning Merrill Public Safety 
Center of Excellence 
Lineman Program 
Equipment 

N Lineman Program Equipment Lineman Program 
Equipment such as trucks, 
trenchers, poles, etc. 

5 – 10 
years 

Growth and 
Innovation 

$200,000 

Learning Agricultural Center of 
Excellence Farm 
Equipment 

N Farm Equipment Farm Equipment such as a 
compact track loader, 
vertical tillage equipment, a 
small baler, a round baler, 
and a hydraulic trainer for 
hydraulics courses. 

5 – 10 
years 

Growth and 
Innovation 

$248,000 

Learning Medford Campus 
Industrial Kitchen 
Equipment 

N Industrial Kitchen Equipment Industrial Kitchen Equipment 
such as oven, stoves, and 
prep tables to mimic 
Wausau campus culinary lab 
equipment. 

5 – 10 
years 

Growth and 
Innovation 

$150,000 

 

12/54



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2018 
 
TOPIC:   New Garden to Market Technical Diploma Program     
 
POLICY:    Community Benefit Statement 2 
   Employers have an available and skilled workforce.  
 
DATA/RESULTS:  The Garden to Market technical diploma is designed for anyone interested in learning about 
market gardening, fruit and vegetable production in a variety of agricultural settings. Hands-on and classroom 
training are offered in both a hoop house and green house lab setting. This program will help prepare learners to 
develop skills to start their own enterprises growing produce and other agriculture products to sell.   
 
The Farm to Table movement has reached the NTC district.  With this movement, comes a need to offer education to 
individuals interested in becoming entrepreneurs or employees who grow and sell produce to local individuals and 
restaurants.  Potential occupations for the graduates of this program could be part-time entrepreneurs to 
supplement their family’s income through selling at local farmer’s markets, full-time businesses growing and selling 
their commodities to local restaurants and consumers, or employees of horticulture/nursery/garden to market 
business owners.  The Garden to Market Technical Diploma program would be a unique program within the 
Wisconsin Technical College System, with no other colleges offering this type of program. 
 
According to EMSI 2017 data1, there are 1721 jobs in the NTC district for this type of occupation. There are 301 
projected job openings in the next ten years. These jobs represent turnover, job growth and projected retirements. 
Within the next ten years, job growth is expected to be 12.1% in the NTC district, similar to the growth in the State 
of Wisconsin (13.2%) and above the growth in the United States (6.0%). 
 
NTC surveyed in-district businesses working in the garden to market industry.  They unanimously indicated the 
growth they’ve experienced in this industry, and they unanimously support the need for NTC to develop and offer 
this program with individuals indicating, “I think this is GREAT!!”, “this is really giving back to the community”, and 
“now is the best time ever, local food is really popular”.     
 
The College wishes to submit the Garden to Market Technical Diploma Program concept review documents to the 
Wisconsin Technical College System Office for consideration as part of the WTCS Occupational Program Approval 
Process. By approving the submission of the program proposal, the College will continue to the next step in the 
process for developing this as a WTCS approved program.  
  
1Economic Modeling Specialist International, EMSI 2017 data. 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:      PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda     Approval of program proposal of the Garden to Market  
       Technical Degree program  
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of this 
date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated_____January 30, 2018_______ 

13/54



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2018 
 
TOPIC:   Receipts & Expenditures 
  
POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, 
shall not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either im-
prudent or in violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure to 
be accredited. 
 
INTERPRETATION: To avoid violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics NTC will fol-
low Wisconsin statute 38.12 District Board Duties (2) “…All expenditures exceeding $2500 shall be ap-
proved by the district board.”  Also, in compliance with Wisconsin statute 38.12(4) District board duties, 
“The publication proceedings shall include a statement of receipts and expenditures in the aggregate.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: The following Status of Funds listing receipts and expenditures including operating trans-
fers in the aggregate is included for informational purposes as of December 31, 2017. 
 
YTD Fund 1 – 7 Revenues:  $50,604,864 
YTD Fund 1 – 7 Expenses:  $48,249,499 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated    January 29, 2018 

14/54



NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 
 
MEETING DATE:      January 23, 2018 
 
TOPIC:  Personnel Changes 
 
POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, shall 
not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either imprudent or in 
violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure to be accredited. 
 
INTERPRETATION: NTC will follow Wisconsin Statute 118.22 (2) “…No teacher may be employed… except by a 
majority vote of the full membership of the board.  Nothing in this section prevents the modification or termi-
nation of a contract by mutual agreement of the teacher and the board.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: A request is made to approve the following personnel changes: 
 
New Hires: 

1. Cher Vink – Associate Vice President of Human Resources 
2. Chad Austin – Custodian 
3. Cindy Malcolm – Assistant, Continuing Education and Business & Industry 
4. Morgan Rindfleisch - Financial Aid Specialist 
5. Pam Hanke - Youth Apprenticeship Recruiter & Student Specialist 
6. Sheri Schultz – Assistant to the Director of Marketing and Public Relations 

 
Resignations: 

1. Mark Doornbos - Custodian 
 

Retirement: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                                    (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of 
this date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated January 29, 2018 

15/54



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: November 3, 2017 Program Name: Certified Nursing Assistant 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Gina Caves, Staff Educator, Wausau Manor 

 Hollie Chrusniak, Director of Clinical Services, North Shore Healthcare 

 Dawn Krueger, Interim Administrator, Rib Lake Health Services 

 Mindy Meehean, Director of Nursing, Pine Crest Nursing Home 

 Raeann Schmueckle, Human Resources Manager, Interim Health Care 

 Jill Scutkowski, Assistant Director of Nursing, Pine Crest Nursing Home 

 Deb Tomlinson, Director of Nursing, Dycora 

 Julie Webb, Director of Nursing, The Bay at Eastview Health and Rehabilitation 

 Kaile Zimmerman, Director of Nursing, Rib Lake Health Services 

NTC Staff: Other: 

 Ann Bauch, CNA Faculty 

 Jared Eggebrecht, Director of Business & Industry 

 Laura Hoffmeister, CNA Program Director 

 Stacy Kunz, Administrative Assistant 

 Jen Sperl, CNA Faculty 

 Emily Steinbach, Health Learning Coordinator 

 Silvia Tzinoglou, CNA Faculty 

 Candy Weinzinger, Geriatric Program Director 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Darren Ackley is the new Vice President of Learning at Northcentral Technical College (NTC). The previous Dean of 

Health, Dr. Lorraine Zoromski, accepted a job with the UW Stevens Point Nursing Program. Marlene Roberts will be 

the new Interim Dean of the School of Health Sciences throughout the fall and spring semester. 

 NTC is transitioning to a new Learning Management System (LMS) called Canvas. Blackboard was the previous LMS. 

Canvas is cloud-based and much more compatible with mobile devices. 

 NTC is focusing on reducing barriers for admission into programs across its programs. The admissions team is 

exploring other measures to be used as benchmarks for a student to be admitted into a program and ultimately 

making the process more flexible without lowering standards. 

 There is a state-wide push to look at the number of credits in each program with the goal of reducing the number 

of credits to 64 credits for an Associate’s Degree.  

 Enrollment numbers are down in NTC’s Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) programs and programs across the 

country. 

 Deb Tomlinson, Director of Nursing at Dycora, said that long-term care (LTC) will be regulated by a new mega-rule 

that is worrying many in the field. They are looking for a train-the-trainer type program for LTC centers. Can NTC 

develop something to train these individuals to meet the required standards? Other advisory members in LTC 

facilities agreed that this type of training would be beneficial. 

 LTC facilities are looking new and creative ways to hire and retain CNAs. Options mentioned were hiring hospitality 

aides and paying for their CNA course and licensure, raising wages, and offering better benefits such as more 

vacation or continuing education. 

 The CNA program has had 31 students withdraw in 2017. It was suggested that NTC have an exit interview or 

evaluation with the students that withdraw so they are able to analyze why these students do not complete the 

16/54



program. Laura Hoffmeister, CNA Program Director at NTC, will work with the instructor team to implement exit 

interviews. 

 The instructors agreed that they are seeing a different work ethic in some of the younger students. The students 
need more guidance and even with this guidance, they do not always succeed. Laura made it clear that not all 
students have had these responsibility issues. There are many phenomenal students that work hard and are 
extremely successful in the course. 

 The demand for summer courses continues to rise. There are now four bed labs in the Center for Geriatric 
Education (CGE). A bed lab was added to maximize the number of summer classes that can be offered. Now the 
concern is the limited number of instructors able to teach. 

 The program is looking at changing their textbook. They like the textbook that they have, but they are coming to a 
new addition and this is a good time to review other books. 

 All programs at NTC were asked to choose one of three grading scales to use for their program. The CNA program 
instructors decided to choose the option that was most similar to their previous scale. They used to pass students 
at 78% and up, but now the pass rate is 80%. 

 The State of Wisconsin is considering a change in CNA training requirements. They currently require 120 hours of 
training in Wisconsin and are looking at lowering this requirement to 75 hours. The CNA program is planning ahead 
in the case that this law goes through and looking at a 75 hour course.  

 Wisconsin has higher CNA test pass rates than every state that has a 75 hour course with comparable testing. The 
NTC instructors and industry members voiced concern about having less trained CNAs caring for the vulnerable 
populations that CNAs typically work with. 

 The advisory members discussed the skills testing portion of the Pearson Vue testing. Many agreed that students 
have been flunked for very minute mistakes or mistakes that were made by the acting patient and not the student. 
The CNA instructors and NTC agree and have been advising students to file a grievance with Pearson Vue if they 
believe their testing was unfair. 

 The committee discussed the modes of delivery of the CNA course. NTC currently offers a hybrid course with an 
online and face-to-face portion. Members asked if a completely face-to-face class would be beneficial to students. 
The CNA team will explore this and assess the needs of students. 

 The advisory members asked if there are any requirements for nursing students to work as a CNA before starting 
the program. This is not a current requirement. Many advisory members voiced that they felt the Wisconsin 
Technical College System (WTCS) should look at adding this requirement. They added that the CNA experience is so 
important and makes for better nurses.  

 Industry members shared information regarding CNA openings at their facilities. There are many openings for CNAs 
currently. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17/54



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: November 30, 2017 Program Name: Surgical Technologist  

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Joseph (Joe) Abt, Aspirus Surgical Services Clinical Educator, Aspirus 

 Kirsten Kilcoyne, Certified Surgical Technologist, Eye Clinic Laser and Surgery Institute of Wisconsin, LLC/NTC 
Graduate 

 Alicia (Allie) Lambrecht, RN, Marshfield Clinic Ambulatory Surgery 

 Stacy Pettit, Certified Surgical Technologist, Pine Ridge Surgery Center 

 Barb Seliger, Surgical Services Clinical Educator, Aspirus 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Janet Baumann, Interim Associate Dean of Health 
Sciences 

 Lori Baumgart, Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences 

 Tracy Brewer, Business Development Manager 

 Julie Osness-Thorson, Surgical Technologist Program 
Director 

 Angel Arellano, Surgical Technologist Student, 
NTC  

 Amy Thrall, Surgical Technologist Student, NTC  
 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Industry leaders find that NTC graduates could use more soft skills to help them transition into the workplace. 

Classes that help with peer communication, conflict resolution, and stress management were felt to be the 

most needed. 

 A question was raised whether students should be sent out for their first Clinical experience during the Fall, 

known for being busy due to deductibles being met. 

 Several industry leaders anticipate openings for Surgical Technologists within the coming year or two. 

 100% of NTC Surgical Technologist students routinely pass their certification exam. In addition, 100% of NTC 

Surgical Technologist students find jobs in their field. 

 Twelve students is the maximum number of NTC Surgical Technologist students each year. This is mostly due 

to finding available Clinical sites for the students. 

 Committee members brainstormed ways to help assure students know what the Surgical Technologist field will 

be like so they will continue in the program and move onto be successful employees. Many agreed job 

shadowing is a great solution. 

 There was some discussion around not having students sit for the HESI exam but rather have a points-system 

applied to their application. Students were not in favor of this trend. 

 With Julie Osness-Thorson’s absence in Fall, it was apparent that there needs to be more back-up in the 

Surgical Technologist program.  

 There is a continuing need for adjunct faculty in the Surgical Technologist Program. 

 Canvas, a new online learning management system is being adopted. Transition from Blackboard to Canvas is 

expected by Fall 2018. 

 The Admissions Department at the college is evaluating entrance requirements for students in programs to 

reduce barriers for students wishing to come to NTC. 

 The Wisconsin Technical College System (WTCS) is recommending that Associate Degree programs are set at 

60 credits due to Bachelor’s degree programs being 120 credits. 

18/54



 Effective October 2017, Marlene Roberts is the new Interim Dean of Health Sciences. Janet Baumann was 

appointed new Interim Associate Dean of Health Sciences effective November 13, 2017.  

 Interim Associate Dean for the School of Health Sciences, Janet Baumann, will work with Interim Dean for the 

School of Health Sciences, Marlene Roberts, for a solution to help with staffing the Surgical Technologist 

Program. 

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2017 Program Name:  Agricultural Sciences 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Annie Falkowski, HR Manager, PAW Health Network 

 Chad Glaze, President/Owner, Vine Vest North, Inc.-Advisory Chair 

 Brian Grandaw, Veterinarian, Medford Veterinary Clinic 

 Amanda Heineck, Hospital Manager, VCA Companion Care Animal Hospital 

 Joe Rudolph, President, Merrill Equipment Company 

 Lee VanDerGeest, Vice President, VanDerGeest Dairy 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Stephen Krueger, Instructor 

 Bobbi Lee, Administrative Assistant 

 Vicky Pietz, Dean, School of Agricultural Sciences 

 William Schultz, College Advising Specialist 

 John Tracey, Instructor 

 Katie VanDerGeest, School of Agricultural Sciences 
Development Manager 

 Charl VanDerNest, Instructor 

 Kimberly Waite, Instructor 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 The college is adopting a new online learning management system called Canvas.  Canvas is much more mobile 

friendly and the students really like it.   

 Northcentral Technical College (NTC) has chosen Darren Ackley as the new Vice President of Learning. 

 NTC is looking to grow short term training/industry credentials for someone already working.  The agriculture 

department has choices of credentials like Artificial Insemination, Pesticide Applicator and Animal Research 

Methods-AALAS.   

 NTC has opened the new STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Math) center in Technology and Trades area.  

The new center will bring together different program areas to work together and collaborate on projects.  

 New student housing (Timberwolf Suites) will be available to student in the spring and there will be 160 beds 

available.   

 Agricultural Sciences also has Culinary Arts as a department, NTC is adding a hoop house at the Agriculture Center 

for Excellence to grow herbs and vegetables for that department.  NTC will be building a new greenhouse 

restaurant in between the Center for Business and Industry (CBI) and the main building on the Wausau Campus. 

 The Agriculture Center of Excellence is currently undergoing renovations.  The farm has grown from one program to 

5 programs and from 20 students to about 200.  The renovations include a student center, two new classrooms, 

expanding the manure pit and a hoop house.  The Ag shop now has air conditioning, a classroom, heating and a 

19/54



bathroom.  New storage cabinets will be installed this spring.  In the main building, the tiered classroom will 

become a science lab classroom for the veterinary science program.  At the south end of the barn there will be a 

new Vector feeding system and feed kitchen to provide fresh feed to the cows at all times.  New ventilation was 

installed in the barn and new cement was poured on the north end by the maxi hutches.  There are also two new 

super hutches.   

 The school is adding a new CDL training center and a new indoor tactical range at the Public Safety building in 

Merrill.     

 There has been an increase in FTE’s from 2017-2018 from 67.67 up to 75.24.  Head count has gone from 143 to 184.  

Note:  the Crop Science Program will have its first graduates spring 2018. 

 Graduates are surveyed about employment both prior to graduation and six months to one year after graduation.  

The Agri-Business, Dairy Science and Veterinary Science programs respondents were all 100% employed, 

Agriculture Equipment Technician respondents were 86% employed.   

 The Post-Secondary Agriculture Student Organization (PAS) has been very busy this year.  They handed out ice 

cream with the culinary club at Ginseng Fest in September and held a painted pumpkin contest.  The fee to enter 

was a donation to Timberwolf Table, which is a student food pantry at NTC.  There were 43 pounds of food 

donated, which the PAS club matched pound-for-pound.  The club walked in the Wausau Christmas parade, sold 

wreaths and rang bells for the Salvation Army.  The club went to the leadership conference in LaCrosse and got 

matching polo shirts and jackets.   

 Curriculum modifications for all programs were discussed and the committee approved moving forward with all 

program changes.   

 The committee brought up the need for having an accredited Veterinary Technician program.  Now that Globe 

University has closed there is no longer a Veterinary Technician program in the area.  The committee asked that 

NTC begin to look at the possibility of adding a Veterinary Technician program to the curriculum.   

 In the 2016-2017 school year Agriculture had 11 continuing education classes and 652 learners.  This school year 

there have been 8 classes and 103 learners so far, with an additional 11 classes pending for spring 2018.  

 The Community College Association for Agricultural Advancement (C2A3) is a partnership that focuses on the 

advancement of agriculture, innovations, improved profitability, stewardship and quality of life in rural American 

through research and education.  The consortium includes ten colleges in the Midwest.  Dean Vicky Pietz, Farm 

Operations Manager Don Radtke and Instructor Steve Krueger work with the USDA-SARE, USDA-NRCS, McKenny 

Consulting, National Corn Growers and others.  The program has just completed the second year of applied 

research in soil health and shared the results at the Cover Crop and Soil Health Field Day on October 26th.  The 

consortium is going to be exploring water quality opportunities in the future.   

 Next meeting will be held on Wednesday, March 21, 2018 at the NTC Agriculture Center of Excellence.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20/54



 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 Program Name: Radiography 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Eric Banda, Radiology Director, The Diagnostic and Treatment Center 

 Sharon Cwikla, Director of Imaging Services, Aspirus Medford Hospital and Clinics and Advisory Chair 

 Howard Graves, Imaging Services Manager, Aspirus Langlade Hospital 

 Leah Gumz, Aspirus Riverview 

 Beth Hallis, Radiographic Technologist, Diagnostic and Treatment Center 

 Jason Romig, Radiographic Technologist, Ascension Good Samaritan Health Center 

 Becky Seiber, Team Lead, Diagnostic and Treatment Center 

 Mike Worzalla, Radiographic Technologist, Marshfield Clinic 

 Staci Zdroik, Ascension St. Michaels Hospital   

NTC Staff: Other 

 Janet Baumann, Interim Associate Dean of Health 
Sciences 

 Brandy Breuckman, Dean of Virtual College 

 LeeAnn Isham-Her, Health Simulation Center 
Coordinator 

 Stacy Kunz, Administrative Assistant 

 Heidi Nichols, Advanced Imaging Program Director 

 Bonnie Osness, Director of Career Pathways 

 Marianne Rhodes, Radiography Program Director 

 Amber Schuck, Clinical Coordinator & Radiography 
Faculty 

 Emily Steinbach, Learning Coordinator for Health 

 Leslie Williams, Continuing Education & Events Assistant 

 Tom Leslie, NTC Radiography Student 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Northcentral Technical College (NTC) was looking at potentially partnering with Mid-State Technical College to 
share a Respiratory Therapist program and since that time NTC was actively pursued by Chippewa Valley 
Technical College for a shared agreement which is being discussed at this time. NTC is very interested in 
partnering on a Respiratory program, but will need clinical sites to make this possible. 
 

 NTC is currently transitioning their Learning Management System from Blackboard to Canvas. Canvas is a cloud-
based system that will integrate better with mobile phones. All courses with online components will be 
transitioned from Blackboard to Canvas by fall 2018.  

 

 There is a state-wide push to look at the number of credits in each program with the goal of reducing the 
number of credits to 60-64 credits for an Associate’s Degree. This is based on the average Baccalaureate 
program being about 120 credits. 

 

 The college and the state are making a big push for program completion. NTC’s numbers for completion of 
program after three years have been low. Although these numbers are comparable to other Wisconsin 
Technical College System (WTCS) colleges, NTC’s leadership team decided that this was not an acceptable 
number. They have found that streamlined programs with a lower number of credits help the students 
complete the program that they intend to complete. 
 

21/54



 The Dean of Health, Lorraine Zoromski, took a position with University of Wisconsin-Stevens Point as part of 
their Nursing program. Effective October of 2017 Marlene Roberts is the new Interim Dean of Health. 
 

 NTC is focusing on reducing barriers for admission into programs. The Admission team is exploring other 
measures to be used as benchmarks for a student to be admitted into a program and ultimately making the 
process more flexible without lowering standards. 

 

 The following industry concern was discussed. Some insurance companies are starting to send their 
Computerized Tomography (CT) scans to private companies rather than to hospitals. There has been a trend of 
large mergers, for example CVS purchasing insurance company, Etna. Smaller hospitals and clinics may start to 
be bought out by larger organizations. 
 

 Amber Schuck, Clinical Coordinator and Radiography Faculty at NTC, stated that the program took 20 students 
in Fall of 2017. They previously took 19, but are now able to take one more after adding a clinical site, the 
Wisconsin Rapids Doctors Clinic. 
 

 The Radiography Club for students is in its second year. They made some changes to accommodate the 
students better. They now have a first year and second year chapter. This new format has worked well and 
they have had good feedback. They are holding a raffle so that students can attend the Radiography 
Symposium in the early spring. 
 

 For the 2016 Radiography graduates, 12 of 13 students taking the credentialing exam passed the first time. The 
student that did not pass retook the exam and passed. 
 

 The Radiography faculty received feedback from clinical sites stating that the students need to communicate 
better during their clinical. She wanted to find more details about which aspects of communication need to be 
improved upon. A Communication Feedback Survey was provided to the advisory members. 
 

 The American Registry of Radiologic Technologists (ARRT) has made changes to their requirements and the 
curriculum for Radiology education is catching up to these changes. The American Society of Radiologic 
Technologists (ASRT) assists in writing this curriculum and it will be implemented in the Fall of 2019. The new 
curriculum will meet the college initiative of minimizing the credit load. The program currently has 70 credits 
and will be reduced to 64. 
 

 There are some students that have ELL (English Language Learner) needs. Testing can be challenging for these 
students because they often have to convert questions into their native language in their head and then back 
to English to answer. The Radiography program will give ELL students 1.5x testing time for their first semester 
in the program to accommodate. After the first semester, they will have to complete the tests in the same time 
as all other students unless they qualify for disability accommodations. 
 

 Every summer the students evaluate the Clinical Instructors (CIs) at their site. This is required by JRCERT (Joint 
Review Committee on Education in Radiologic Technology). These evaluations are anonymous and the 
feedback is returned to the CIs. Students were 95-97% satisfied with their CIs. 
 

 There is capital set aside for an additional DR plate, although the team is having a hard time finding one. They 
are looking at a Phillips refurbished plate. 
 

 The Radiography Program is reevaluating their admissions process. They are looking at a two-tiered plan. Tier 1 
would have the most basic requirements of the program: the student is 18 years old, the student is a high 
school graduate or has a GED, and the student has an interest in the program. They are working to determine 
what Tier 2 would entail. Currently the program uses the HESI entrance exam. 
 

22/54



 Advisory members were reminded that NTC offers a CT program. NTC also offers a Magnetic Resonance 
Imaging (MRI) program. 

 

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: December 8, 2017 Program Name: Dental 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Erica Casper, RDH, Dental Visions 

 Anne Jensen, Hygienist, Ascension (via phone) 

 Mike Murphy, DDS, FAGD, DICOI, Northwoods Dentistry 

 Krystal Newman, RDH, Mosinee Family Dental, The Dental Suite 

 Diana Yokimcus, RDH/Hygiene Coordinator, Dental Clinic of Marshfield 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Janet Bauman, Interim Associate Dean of Health 
Sciences 

 Lori Baumgart, Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences 

 Brad Gast, Dean of Continuing Education and Business & 
Industry 

 Michelle Hilts, Dental Faculty 

 Deb Koziel, Dental Faculty 

 Karen Turner, Program Director/Dental Faculty 

 Rich Wilkosz, Science Faculty 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Those in industry shared they are using air polishers and lasers more often. 

 BIS will be helping find a course to help train (students) in the usage of lasers. Infection Control and Airways are 

other topics staff are interested in. 

 Four new adjunct faculty were hired: One in Radiography and Three in Dental Hygiene Process I. 

 Dental Assistant Program: Retention is higher than the NTC average. Student course completion rate was 98% and 

satisfaction rate is 100%. There are more students interested in the program than can be accommodated at this 

time.  

 NTC had a site visit which included regional sites, even Colby Community College (CCC) in Kansas, in October by 

the Higher Learning Commission (HLC). Karen traveled to CCC with the Director of College Effectiveness for that 

visit and met with the HLC evaluator and the faculty there. The visit went well. The reviewer thought that NTC’s 

main campus collaboration with CCC was right in line with what HLC was looking for. 

 Karen Turner thanked Deb Koziel for her involvement with the Dental Student Club. The club is very active in 

planning activities for the community. 

 Karen expressed her gratitude for a new SciCan and Radiography manikins. A second soft tissue laser is in the 

works and it looks like another Hydrim will be added as well.  

 Dr. Mike Murphy spoke of NOMAD equipment and encouraged Karen to look into the possibility of acquiring one 

of those instead to keep up with Industry Trends. 

23/54



 There was discussion around what is considered remediable in the dental industry. All attendees agreed that 

Dental Assistants should not be doing any procedures that involved going into the subgingival region nor should 

they be doing any probing. 

 Canvas, a new online learning management system is being adopted. Transition from Blackboard to Canvas is 

expected by Fall 2018. 

 The Admissions Department at the college is evaluating entrance requirements for students in programs to 

reduce barriers for students wishing to come to NTC. 

 The Wisconsin Technical College System (WTCS) is recommending that Associate Degree programs are set at 60 

credits due to Bachelor’s degree programs being 120 credits. 

 Effective October 2017, Marlene Roberts is the new Interim Dean of Health Sciences. Janet Baumann was 

appointed new Interim Associate Dean of Health Sciences effective November 13, 2017.  

 Interim Associate Dean for the School of Health Sciences, Janet Baumann, will work with Interim Dean for the 

School of Health Sciences, Marlene Roberts, for a solution to help with staffing the Surgical Technologist Program. 

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2017 Program Name: Graphic Comm.& Video Production  

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Mike Busch, Offset Production Manager, Worzalla 

 Devin Cyzan, D&L Signs 

 Elizabeth Kysely, Tech Ed Instructor, Wausau East High School 

 Todd Langseth, Customization Manager, Eastbay Inc. 

 Mike Pliska, Graphics Manager, Wausau Container Corp. 

 Ryan Podeweltz, Graphix Plus 

 Scott Reindl, Reindl Printing 

 Joe VanDerGeest, Sales/Manager, Quality Resource Group 

 Kristina Westfall, Wausau Container 

 Bill Zoesch, Wausau Container 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Greg Cisewski, Associate Dean, Technology and Trades 

 Bobbi Lee, Administrative Assistant 

 Beth Russ, Instructor 

 Andy Somers, Instructor 

 Dan Seanor, Instructor 

 Jordan Innes, Instructor 

 Jared Eggebrecht, Director, Business & Industry 

 Bonnie Osness, Director of Career Pathways 

 Amy Dennisen, Advising Specialist, Virtual College 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

A. Industry Trends 
 
Joe VanDerGeest, Quality Resource Group, stated they have been doing a lot of commercial print and have 
seen a lot more digital demand, with everyone wanting their product immediately.  Todd Langseth, Eastbay, 
Inc. agreed, stating that turnaround times have shortened considerably.  Eastbay is looking into doing printing 

24/54



on the spot like the NFL shop does to get the product to the customer within 2-3 days.  He mentioned that 
Eastbay cannot get enough employees and outsources approximately 25% of work to people throughout the 
US.  Mike Pliska, Wausau Container, reported that it is hard to find skilled labor and to keep employees.  The 
holiday season is their busy time of year with printing food containers and they have hired 25 new employees 
in the last year.  Mike Busch, Worzalla, explained that they are printing smaller quantities, but more often.  
They added a sheeter last January so they can sheet their own paper, with paper mills closing it is hard to get 
stock.  Orders are up, along with increased pressure to get the product there faster.  Scott Reindl, Reindl 
Printing, agreed that with paper mills closing, paper prices are going up.  With postage going up in the future 
as well, people may look in another direction.  They are installing a new 40” ink jet Komori press, every sheet 
off the press can be something different and this is a new thing for them.  Reindl is also hurting for employees 
and it is hard to find people that want to work.  Devin Cyzan, D&L Signs, informed the committee that 
anything with vinyl is skyrocketing.  Vehicle wraps, trailer wraps, etc. are doing very well, as they are 
reasonably priced and easy to change.  D&L Signs built a new building with double the square footage and 
gone from one outside technician to three, they have experienced a lot of growth recently.     

 
B.  Program Information 

 

 Enrollment Report 
 
There are forty active students in the fall 2017 semester for Graphic Communications and 27 students 
enrolled in face to face classes for Video Production and 15 Virtual College students for fall 2017.  The 
question was raised if NTC is seeing a trend that students are finding four-year universities too expensive and 
coming to two-year institutions instead.  Greg stated that the average age of student at NTC has dropped 
dramatically and is around 23 right now.  NTC is getting many more students straight out of high school than 
in the past.  There are many options now to make NTC feel more like a four-year university with on campus 
housing and intra-mural sports.  Students have dual credit options, so they can have NTC credits before they 
even graduate from high school.  Elizabeth Kysely, Wausau East High School, stated that there are high school 
students that start at NTC to save money.  Devin stated he got his Associate’s degree at NTC and then went on 
for his Bachelor’s degree at UW-Stout.  He explained that NTC is all hands on teaching, while the UW schools 
are more book learning.  He knew how to do things that other students did not due to his teachings from NTC.  
Greg informed the committee that 84% of NTC’s students qualify for financial aid, so the financial aspect of 
schooling is a big deal in this area.  The question was asked if NTC is the only Technical College with on 
campus housing and there are a few others throughout the state, like Fox Valley, Green Bay and Western that 
have on campus housing as well.  NTC does have a unique Graphics program and can draw students from a 
long distance due to that.  Beth Ross, Instructor, also mentioned that there are Marketing students in the 
Graphics programs, as there is no longer a separation between marketing and graphics.  The result is a good 
mix of students that learn how to work in different areas and learn how ideas can cross over from one area to 
another.   
 

 Graduate Follow Up Report 
 
There was a handout in the folder for committee members on the Graduate Outcomes Report for the class of 
2016. 
 

 Timberwolf Productions Update 
 
The video production club and the graphic communications club combined and started Timberwolf 
Productions.  Currently, a large portion of the club are video students and they traveled to Michigan Tech for 
their film festival.  The club has done videos for Phi Theta Kappa and the Veterans Club and also did work for a 
charity event for Senator Jerry Petrowski.  The club is holding a film festival “Cringfest” on Tuesday, December 
19th.  The club hopes to gain more graphics students next semester to make the club more collaborative 

25/54



instead of doing mostly film projects.  The club does have a live job shop where they do small jobs and 
industry applications to give the students experience with actual customers.   

 
C.  Curriculum/Assessment 
 

  TSA Phase 2 
 
Bonnie Osness, Director of Career Pathways, stated the committee has already approved TSA Phase 1 and the 
program is now looking for approval of Phase 2.  Jordan Innes, Instructor, explained how he is assessing 
students and students have to meet the program outcomes.  The committee gave their full approval to the 
Video Production assessment plan as discussed.   
 

  Curriculum Modification 
 
There is a push across the nation to get Associate Degrees closer to 60-64 credits, or about half of a Bachelor’s 
degrees 120 credits.  There is a greater chance of students finishing the program with less credits.  NTC is 
modifying curriculum to try to get closer to 60-64 credits per program without losing any competencies.  
Video Production is dropping their 3D class and will be adding the competencies from this class to another 
class in the program.  2D animation will still be taught.  The committee gave their full approval for the 
modification.   
 

  Canvas Transition 
 
NTC is adopting a new online learning management system called Canvas.  The current online learning 
management system is Blackboard, all programs are currently transitioning over to Canvas.  Canvas is more 
user friendly and the students really like it.   

 
D.  Equipment and Facilities 

 

 Andy Somers, Instructor, informed the committee that the Graphics program has put in for new presses.  The 
some current presses are no longer serviceable due to a manufacturer going out of business.  Trying to update 
to Heidelberg Printmaster GTO’s. Waukesha Technical College closed their printing program a year ago and 
NTC is in contact with them regarding getting their printing presses, which are Printmaster GTO’s.  The 
invitation was given to the committee to do a tour of the labs after the meeting.  

 Andy Somers, Instructor, informed the committee that the Graphics program has put in for new presses.  The 
current presses are no longer serviceable and out dated.  We are trying to update to Hypertherm and 2 color 
Printmasters.  Waukesha Technical College closed their printing program a year ago and NTC is in contact with 
them regarding getting their printing presses, which are Printmaster GTO’s.  The invitation was given to the 
committee to do a tour of the labs after the meeting. 
 

E.  Continuing Education /Business & Industry Initiatives 
 
          Jared Eggebrecht, Director of Business & Industry, handed out folders to the committee and informed them 

there was information in the folder regarding how to be registered in Wisconsin TechConnect as a way to 
connect with possible employees. There was also information on upcoming career events and job fairs for 
employers to participate in.  Jared mentioned Culinary Team Building, which is a workshop that will have 
employees working together to make a meal and learning the importance of working as a team.  Grant 
courses are available for a technical diploma in Leadership Development, where activities and projects can be 
tailored to reflect the specific needs of an organization and are delivered in an accelerated hybrid format.  
NTC has numerous OSHA safety training offerings throughout the year and five different Business Essential 
Series available as well.  In February 2018, NTC will offer a Customer Service conference with John McHugh, 
Director of Corporate Communications at Kwik Trip as the keynote speaker.   NTC is able to do a needs 

26/54



assessment to find where any skill gap lies in your business and then tailor trainings to fill that gap.  There is a 
possibility of offering continuing education courses dealing with digital print and the adobe creative products.   

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date:  December 13, 2017 Program Name: 

Electromechanical 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Scott Bouchard – Creative Automation 

 Michael DeBroux – Rocket Industrial 

 Ryan Hall – Rocket Industrial 

 Wesley Hoffman – Rocket Industrial 

 Bill Huebsch – Greenheck Fan 

 Jim King  Greenheck Fan 

 Mike Martin – Complete Control Solutions 

 Ted Osenga – Donaldson Company 

 Dave Tanger – Marathon Technologies 

 Dave Thompson – Wausau Coated Products 

 Rick Wilson – Nicolet Plastics 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Dustin VanDeWeerd – Electromechanical Instructor 

 Bryan Schroder – Electromechanical Instructor 

 Michael Hladilek – Electromechanical Instructor 

 Mike Rhyner – Electromechanical Instructor 

 Jared Eggebrecht – Business Development Manager 

 Darren Ackley – Dean, Technical & Trades 

 Katie Metko – Learning Coordinator 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

STUDENT PROJECTS:  The committee shared positive feedback for the student projects. They complimented the 
students on the projects that were displayed.  The trainers were well received and will be integrated into the curriculum 
in the upcoming semesters.  The spring semester should have approximately 20 projects displayed due to the larger 
class. 
INDUSTRY TRENDS: Committee members shared the business outlooks from their individual companies. The biggest 
need is for qualified employees. Committee members complimented NTC on the quality of students from this program.  
Members reported that business is booming and orders are looking good well into the future.  Companies agreed that 
the trend in the industry is to include sensors on machines and monitor as much as possible.  The industry is also 
stressing safety.  Industry Workplace Safety has been worked into the curriculum and OSHA 10 cards will be able to be 
obtained.  Maintenance Technician Apprenticeship program is a plus for the employers.  Employers were given 
information on Tech Connect and how they can post job openings.   
ENROLLMENT REPORT:  Mike Rhyner reviewed the Electromechanical program enrollment report.  There are 21 
students in first semester, 6 students in second semester, 20 students in third semester and 7 students in fourth 
semester.  The spring semester will have 13 students in the associate degree program and 5 in the technical program.  
The number of self-paced students is increasing every year.  Of the first semester students several are taking some face 
to face as well as some flex classes.  The committee would like to see the unduplicated enrollment numbers regarding 

27/54



 

 

 

 

 

the face-to-face and flex classes.  These can be sent to the committee with the distribution of the meeting minutes.  On 
average it take a student four to five years to complete the degree through the flex classes only. 
GRADUATE OUTCOMES REPORT: The class of 2016 graduate outcome report was distributed to the committee.  There 
were 17 graduates in 2016 for the Electromechanical Associate Degree with 100% employed.  The average annual 
salary is approximately $57,200 with the annual salary range from $31,200 to $124, 800. 
ELECTROMECHANICAL CLUB:  The club is established and have set goals for the spring semester.  The members would 
like attend the Robo Games in California competing in the Hockey Robot Competition.   Kaley Kaiser discussed funding 
with Darren Ackley, the Vice-President of Learning, and has secured funding for eight bots to be built and taken to 
Sacramento at the end of April for the competition.  The club has three fundraisers currently underway which include a 
coupon book for local business discounts, a 50/50 raffle, and etched glassware for sale.  Corporate Sponsorships are 
under consideration for this competition.  Committee members asked that the raffle information be posted to the NTC 
bulletin board.    
CURRICULUM MODIFICATION:  Handout exhibit A was distributed to discuss curriculum modifications for the 2018-
2019 school year.  We are balancing the credits through the semesters which has moved some of the general education 
classes to new semesters.  Recap of the courses being changed includes eliminating word, excel, DC 1&2, AC1&2, Dig. 
1&2, Devices 1&2 and Electrical Systems.  We have added Industrial Electronics 1 through 6.  Interpreting Engineering 
Drawings is changing from 2 credits to 1 credit.  The Committee discussed the proposed change which offered 
Solidworks or AutoCAD but the committee felt that the degree should offer both Solidworks and AutoCAD.  

 The Electromechanical Technology Associate Degree changes were approved as distributed by the 
committee with the change of offering both the Solidworks and AutoCAD classes.   

 The 31-4147 Industrial Electronics & Maintenance Technical Diploma is going to aid code 31 from aid code 
30 for a total of 24 credits.  The committee approved this change.  AutoCAD electrical was discussed as a 
future offering.  The committee was asked to identify competencies for this course and email those to Bryan 
Schroder at schrodeb@ntc.edu.       

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT:  Dustin Van De Weerd reported that the goal for capital equipment is to add more robots to the 
six Fanuc robots we have.  We would also like the new robots to have IR vision.  We requested one or two collaborative 
robots to keep up with other colleges.  Power flex drives, other drives and a mill and lathe for the lab were also 
requested.     
NSF GRANT UPDATE:  Michael Hladilek updated the committee on NSF Grant that NTC has received in partnership with 
the Science Museum of Minnesota.  This is a three year research project integrating some computational thinking skills 
in grades six through twelve.  School districts will be visited to recruit mentors for projects in these grades to excite 
students in computing, logic, and reasoning.  This was the first NSF Grant NTC has received and we expect this will open 
the door for more opportunities. 
CONTINUING EDUCATION/BUSINESS & INDUSTRY:  Tracey Brewer, Business and Industry, shared information on 
upcoming events and workshops.  If any companies are looking for specialized training for their employees they should 
contact our Center for Business and Industry.  Tracy and Michael Hladilek have been visiting sites with the Mobile 
Emerging Technologies trailer to promote various training opportunities.  Training such as Osha, leadership, or six 
sigma can be offered at your company.  NTC Fusion is being implemented which will allow companies to purchase seats 
for training at a reduced cost in a variety of areas.   

28/54



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: Thursday, December 14, 2017 Program Name: Renal Dialysis 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Jessica Dale, Renal Case Manager for Complex Medical Conditions, Optum Health Care Kidney Resource Services  

NTC Staff: Other 

 Janet Baumann, Interim Associate Dean of Health 
Sciences 

 Lori Baumgart, Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences 

 Jared Eggebrecht, Business Development Manager, 
Business & Industry Solutions 

 Kessa Erickson, Renal Dialysis Program Director 

 Marlene Roberts, Interim Dean of Health Sciences 

 Angela Roesler, Nursing & Health Navigator Faculty 

 Mary Thao, College Advising Specialist 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Janet Baumann shared that the college is adopting a new online learning management system called Canvas. 
Canvas is in a format that can be accessed from mobile devices and includes many features for student 
success. All courses with online components will be transitioned from Blackboard to Canvas by fall 2018.   

 

 The Admissions Department at the college is evaluating entrance requirements for students in programs to 
reduce barriers for students wishing to come to NTC. Program Directors are getting together to discuss other 
measures/benchmarks for admission requirements.  

 

 The Wisconsin Technical College System (WTCS) is recommending that Associate Degree programs are set at 
60 credits due to Bachelor’s degree programs being 120 credits. WTCS colleges are individually making 
decisions and NTC is working towards reducing the Associate Degree programs to between 60 and 64 credits.  

 

 On October 1, 2017, NTC hired Darren Ackley as the new VP for Learning.  Darren was the Dean for NTC’s 
School of Applied Technology and Engineering; he has a teaching background and has a lot of experience 
working with programs and faculty at the college.   

 

 Effective October of 2017 Marlene Roberts is the new Interim Dean of Health Sciences. Janet Baumann was 
appointed new Interim Associate Dean of Health Sciences effective November 13, 2017.  
 

 Jessica Dale reported that the State of California is pushing to get the mandatory staffing ratio reduced for 
dialysis units on the ballot. Currently, the ratio is 12-13 patients to 1 Nurse; 4-6 patients for 1 Tech. 
 

 Jessica also mentioned two big skills students should possess are soft skills and infection control methods. 
 

 Marlene Roberts will help Kessa with the recruiting and marketing of the Renal Dialysis program itself and 
with Advisory Committee membership. Kessa thought students would be interested in a part-time program. 
 

 Kessa put out a plea for clinical sites for students. The regional sites to consider are Davita, Aspirus, and 
Fresenius. 
 

29/54



 Jessica commented that patient interview skills are important when speaking with patients. Janet will help 
Kessa by sharing methods Medical Assistant students use. 
 

 Jared shared many examples of how the Center for Business & Industry can help local businesses with 
professional development seminars and courses.  

 

 

 

 

30/54



 
 

 

  Board of Trustees Meetings/Upcoming Events - 2017-2018                  
 

Date 
 

Event 

D
o
u

g
la

s
 

F
a

ra
g

h
e

r 

T
o

m
 

F
e

lc
h
 

K
ri

s
ti
n

e
 

G
ilm

o
re

 

L
e

e
  

L
o
 

C
h
a

rl
ie

 

P
a

u
ls

o
n
 

P
a

u
l 

P
ro

u
lx

 

R
u
th

 

R
is

le
y
-G

ra
y
 

D
a
le

 

S
m

it
h
 

M
a

ri
a
 

V
o

lp
e
 

2017           

July 10 Annual Organizational Meeting (Wausau) X X E X X X X X X 

July 13-15 WTC District Board Assn. Summer Meeting (Kenosha)          

Aug 8 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) E X E X X X X X X 

Sept 13 A Day for NTC Students (Medford)     X     

Sept 19 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau Campus) X E X X X X X X X 

Sept 25-28 ACCT Leadership Congress (Las Vegas, NV)      X   X 

Sept 27 A Day for NTC Students (Antigo)          

Oct 24 Tactical Safety Range Ribbon Cutting (Merrill) 
NTC Board & NTC Foundation Joint Lunch (Merrill) 
Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Merrill) 

X X X X E X E X X 

Nov 1-4 WTC District Board Assn. (Waukesha)      X   X 

Nov 9 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)          

Nov 16 Scholars & Donors Reception (3:30 – 5:30)          

Dec 5 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) X X X E E X X X X 

Dec 16 Mid-Winter Commencement (Grand Theatre)  X X   X X X  

2018           

Jan 9 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) X X X X X X X X X 

Feb 6 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Feb 11-14 ACCT National Legislative Summit (TBD)          

Mar 6 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Mar 7 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)          

Apr 3 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Apr 26 Scholars & Donors Reception (3:30 – 5:30)          

May 1 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

May 10 A Day for NTC Students (Wausau)          

May 19 Commencement (Wausau West Fieldhouse (9:00 – 12:00)          

June 12 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

June 14 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)          

July 9 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

 
 Updated:  1/29/2018 

31/54



32/54



33/54



34/54



35/54



36/54



37/54



38/54



39/54



40/54



41/54



42/54



43/54



44/54



45/54



46/54



47/54



48/54



49/54



50/54



51/54



52/54



53/54



54/54


	NTC Board Agenda - Feb 6
	Approval of minutes from January 9, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting 

	Approval of 2018 – 2019 Tentative Capital Budget  

	topic summary Feb 2018 capital exp detail of $50000 - Page 2
	New Garden to Market Technical Diploma Program 

	Receipts &amp; Expenditures 

	Personnel Changes 

	Advisory Meeting Minutes  

	Upcoming Meetings_Events 

	Good News 


